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Solicitation Information 

October 3, 2012   

 

Addendum #3 

 

 
RFP # 7457985 

 

TITLE:  LEASE OF STATE PROPERTY – 25 India Street, Providence, RI (property formerly 

known as “Shooters”) 
 

SUBMISSION DEADLINE:  October 30, 2012 @ 11:00 AM (ET) 
 

 

The Rhode Island Division of Purchases has received notice from a former owner of its intent to 

exercise its statutory right of first refusal regarding the property at 25 India Street after proposals 

are received but before any lease is entered. DEM is aware of these rights and will ensure that 

the statutory process will be followed as part of any future lease of the property. 

 

Attached are vendor questions with State responses.  No further questions will be answered. 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

Daniel W. Majcher, Esq. 

Assistant Director, Special Projects  
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RFP # 7457985 – 25 India Street  

 

Addendum # 3 

 

• The Rhode Island Division of Purchases has received notice from a former owner of its 

intent to exercise its statutory right of first refusal regarding the property at 25 India 

Street after proposals are received but before any lease is entered. DEM is aware of these 

rights and will ensure that the statutory process will be followed as part of any future 

lease of the property. 

 

• Below are responses to vendor questions.  There are two additional attachments related to 

these responses available on the website. 

 

• Please continue to monitor the website regularly for any additional information.  

  

25 India Street Questions and Answers 

 

1. Why 20 year lease instead of the 40 year lease as approved by the General Assembly?   

The Lease can extend for up to 40 years; it will be a 20 year lease with two additional 

terms of 10 years each. 

2. If more time needed is will you extend to January? We do not intend to extend at this 

point in time; we can extend if we believe that it is necessary.   

3. Is there a Guaranteed Winner? No.  The State reserves the right to reject any and all 

bids if they do not meet the criteria and threshold points. 

4. a. Is there an effective Marina Permit Line (MPL) currently in place? The MPL is yet 

to be defined.  The CRMC Permit is already in place but may require modification to 

MPL. 

b. What type of application would be necessary?  A new proposal will require a 

modification of the CRMC Assent currently in place.  

c. Is it a full category B application? It may be an administrative process or a  full 

Category B depending on the proposal. 

5. What is environmental situation of site?  There are no known existing DEM 

environmental violations on site.   

6. What is Providence approval process?  That will depend on the extent of development.  

The city zoning ordinance requires that projects that propose buildings of more than 
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10,000 sq. ft. of floor area be reviewed by the City Plan Commission as Major Land 

Development Projects. Projects are expected to conform to the use, dimensional, 

landscaping, and parking requirements of the ordinance. The Providence Department 

of Planning and Development would consider on a case-by-case basis if it would 

support zoning variances. The Zoning Board of Review has final authority over 

variance requests. The State expects to have a representative from the City on the 

Review Team. 

7. Is there a lot of judgment in the approval of a proposal or is it just based on the 

criteria?  The Review Team will score all proposals based upon the criteria in the 

RFP and make a recommendation based upon that review.  There is a 60 point 

threshold that all proposals must meet in order to be considered.    

8. What do you know about the adjoining property to west?   That property is owned 

and operated primarily as a tugboat operation.  The owner has stated his intent to 

keep the property as a “working waterfront”.   b. Is it a rental?  Our understanding is 

that part of the property (eastern most portion of the building) is rented to a marine 

repair shop. c. Is there availability of that rental site? At the time the property manger 

was contacted approximately six months ago, he did not have any intention of leasing 

any portion of this land for any other uses, including parking.  

9. There is a PCB site around that area? Are there plans by DEM or the Feds to 

ameliorate?  The State has no plans to resolve any contamination issues on the 

adjoining site; that is the responsibility of the landowner.   

10. How many parking spaces available and are they guaranteed for this site? It is 

estimated that there are 150 public parking spaces within ¼ mile of the property.  

These parking spaces are not guaranteed for use by this site.  What about onsite 

parking?  It is estimated that the current configuration of the property allows for 

approximately 75 parking spaces on site.  

11. a. What are CRMC’s requirements as far as parking for a marina development?  

CRMC requires one parking space for every 1.5 slips. 

b. Will CRMC consider this a destination facility?  It may be possible for this to be 

considered a destination facility.   
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12. What would be the status of improvements made at the end of the lease period?  At 

the end of the lease, permanent improvements typically would belong to the State.  We 

may consider a buy-out provision for developer investment based upon the value of 

the improvements at the termination of the lease.    

13. Would the lease provide for a pre-negotiated price to purchase said improvements at 

the term's end.  We may agree to a formula and/or process to calculate the value of 

the improvements but unlikely we would agree to a a specific dollar amount at the 

onset of the lease of the value of improvements after a 40 year lease term.   

14. How is it handled at Galilee?  At Galilee, the improvements that cannot be removed at 

the termination of the lease become the property of the State.  However, there is often 

a transfer of the lease and associated improvements during the term of the lease; the 

tenants can then ‘sell” their investment to the new tenant.  Any lease transfer requires 

DEM and State Properties Committee approval. 

15. Can you provide a sample contract/lease for the properties at Galilee?  A sample lease 

at Galilee is attached as Appendix “A“ to the RFP.    

16. Please provide as an addendum a sample lease of the establishments on state land at 

Galilee, indicating DEM's handling of the issue of how prospective developers can 

recoup their investment in improvements on the site at the end of a lease term.   See 

answer to Questions 14 and 15 above.   

17. It would also be helpful, as discussed at the pre-bid conference, to know how the City 

Assessor will handle assessments on real and improved property.  As stated at the 

pre-bid conference, we expect that the City Assessor will tax the land and 

improvements as per R.I.G.L. 44-4-6. 

18.  Did the US Army Corps of Engineers issue a permit for the project (Addendum #1 

mentions one was needed)?  Please provide a copy of the permit if it is available.  See 

addenda post “Department of the Navy Permit.”   

19. As discussed during the pre-bid meeting, will CRMC be able to provide a copy of a 

more recent hydrographic survey of the waterway near the site?  I believe circa ~2007 

was mentioned.   See link to ACOE site for bathymetric survey information.  The 

following link is for the USACE New England District Rhode Island navigation 

projects page. Interested parties can select the desired data set (ASCII XYZ data, 
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PDF bathymetry maps or hydrographic survey in DGN file format) for the Seekonk 

River. The hydrographic data is directly adjacent to the Shooter's project site and the 

publication date is 10/12/2007. 

See: http://www.nae.usace.army.mil/navigation/navigation2.asp?mystate=RI  

20. Can the State provide a copy of the 'approved site plan' referenced in the CRMC 

permit (Addendum #1)?  Plan is referenced as: "Luxury Dock Inc., India Point 

Marina, Providence, RI.. Final Site Plan", dated 2/20/90, by Moffat & Nichol 

Engineers, in one sheet, stamped by S. M. Brockwell, PE. 

See attached. 

 




























